OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
Peterborough, New Hampshire

CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL BOARD

Tuesday, December 18, 2007
SAU Office

Dinner/SMS Tour- 5:30 p.m.
Board Meeting D7 p.m.

MINUTES
BOARD ADMINISTRATION
Mary Allen, Beverly Bacon, Richard Bergeron, Supt.
Stewart Brock, Ray Cote, Don Johnson, Asst. Supt.
Gail Cromwell, Butch Estey, Marian Alese, B.A.
Bart Goodeve, Dan Harper, Linda Potter, SpEd.
Craig Hicks, Arthur Knight, Niki McGettigan, TES
Mary Loftis, Bill McKinnon, Jeanie West, SMS
Tom Welden Sue Copley, PES
May Clark, DCS
Beth San Martino, CVEA Dick Dunning, SMS
Tim lwanowicz, GES
Gib West, GBS

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance
Tom Welden called the meeting to order at 7:13 p.m. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.
Tom thanked Dick Dunning for dinner tonight at SMS and for the tour.

2. Minutes (Board Vote Required) (Pgs. 1-6)

a. December 4, 2007
Stewart Brock moved to accept the minutes of the December 4, 2007 meeting. Craig Hicks
second. Butch Estey abstained. All else in favor.

3. Public Comment
None.

4. Consent Agenda

a. NH Department of Education visit to Antrim Elementary School (Pg. 7)
Dick Bergeron referenced the notification of the DOE visit. A team of five will visit Antrim. They
will also have lunch with staff.
Gail asked what approval we are seeking. Dick said that it is a mid cycle visit. The visiting team
will look at program, facility, staff education etc.

5. Superintendent’s Report and Presentation of Business
a. Personnel (Board Vote Required) (Pg. 8)
1. Extended Leave Request
Dick referenced the leave request. It is common practice in the district for the Board to approve.
Dick Bergeron recommended the request.



Butch Estey moved to accept the request for extended leave. Beverly Bacon second.
Unanimous.

b. Field Trip Proposal (Board Vote Required) (Pgs. 9-12)
1. ConVal High School Seniors will travel to Orlando FL for the Senior class trip from
April 23 — 26, 2008

Dick Bergeron said that this trip has been recommended in the past. Sue Dell said that Susan
Speckman, Sr. Advisor, is present along with two students to answer any questions. Sue said that
this class has worked hard to reach this goal.
Butch asked if a student cannot afford to attend, will funds be available to students. Sue
Speckman said that funds are set aside and will be divvied out.
Mary Loftis asked what percentage of students attends this trip. Sue Dell said that roughly 50 — 90
students typically attend this trip.
Stewart asked how much this class has raised. Sue Speckman said approximately $12,000 to
date. Tom Welden asked how this project is voted on. It was said that an original vote was taken
including more local trips as well as the trip to Florida.
Arthur Knight asked why the students that do not attend choose not to. Carly Genet said that 54%
said that they would go, a majority wants to attend this trip.
Dick Bergeron volunteered to chaperone.
Stewart Brock moved to allow the Senior Class of 2008 to travel to Florida in April. Butch
Estey second. Unanimous.

Tom Welden took a moment to introduce Tim Markley as the Districts new Human Resource
Director.

c. Update on Bleachers
Marian said that a repair/replace quote has been received. To do the work at CVHS will cost
$116,000 to replace. PES will cost approximately $ 17,000 to repair. If we place an order
combining the jobs we will save approximately $5,000. We have a capital trust fund that has funds
to cover this expense. We have not received the results of the most recentinspection.
Dick said that the intention is to secure other quotes as well.
Craig asked if they were powered. We want electrical, we know we have to supply the juice. Does
it include motors. Marian said that the motors are extra.
Craig said that we should go with motorized for longevity.
Arthur Knight said that we have been talking a lot about ADA compliance. Craig said that they will
be ADA compliant. Arthur asked if we want to spend $150,000 and move things around. Can
these bleachers be moved?
Craig said that right now, our gym is our gym. We need to focus on the gym we currently have.
Craig asked what we would do in the short term. He added that he heard that all of the bleachers
flunked. We are waiting for the report. Dick said that he is waiting for the report.
Marian said all of the schools that had bleachers were inspected.
Craig said that from a buying standpoint, bundling the purchase, we might contemplate the buying
power of doing all of the schools.
Marian said that this was preliminary. It is based on the assumption of the inspection and that this
organization can move pretty quickly.
Craig said that we will meet in two to three weeks. He asked if we wanted to wait three weeks to
order bleachers for the high school. Bart asked what more this body needed.
Dick Bergeron said that competitive bids should be solicited.
Craig said that we have likely missed the basketball season.



Marian said that Jon Hall is concerned that the gym not be shut down when this work takes place.
PE classes take place in the winter. Jon will have input once the information is received.

Gail emphasized getting two bids on the same set of specifications.

Mary Allen said that we should get a feeling from other schools about the quality of the
mechanism. Bart said that an electrician should evaluate of power capabilities.

Dick asked the board skip over item D.

d. Wellness Policy
Skipped.

e. Monthly Events Calendar (Pg. 13-14)
Tom Welden made a statement about negotiations. Yesterday the Association and the Board had
a mediation session. They did not come to an agreement. The fact finder will gather information
and present a written report around January 7M. There is a 10 day black out period where the
report is not available to the public. The Board will make a decision. The teachers do the same. If
both parties accept, a contract is agreed upon. If not, it goes to the ballot.

6. Old Business

a. Budget Update — SAU Leadership Team
Dick distributed a document titled Budgeting --- Next Steps Leading to Changes in FY09 Version |l
(See Attachment #1). Dick apologized for the miscommunication on the blue reports. We received
census information. Dick said that we would like to reconstruct the averages by using three year
rolling averages. When we redesign our projections we will look for other opportunities for
consolidation. He said that he will update the Board.
Marian said that we will be looking at the influx of students that come in during the summer and
study where they came from.
Dick said that we submit our data to NESDEC and they project for us.
Marian promises the Board that CVES efficiencies will range from $20K — $25K. Marian said that
this includes Guidance, Media, Music, etc. After talking to building principals, we feel that we can
afford some efficiencies in this area as well.
Dick shared that he had a long and productive meeting with Jeanie Connolly and we were able to
find some consolidations. He wants to continue this discussion with the Administrative Council. If
we recommend any fundamental structural changes in the Arts Enrichment areas, we want to be
able to explain them.
Bart said that being able to show us how the program will be better without a loss to the students is
what we need to see.
Dick said that Tim Markley, HR Director, is working on the SAU Organizational Chart. It should be
complete by the end of the week.
Dick said that he is arranging, by suggestion, that it is important to reach out to the communities to
discuss what we promise to be. We need to make assurances. He is outlining membership for
visiting teams. He asked the Board to talk about the budget in their communities as well as
proposed changes. He said that the GBS/AES campus plan discussion should begin immediately.
Changes to the Articles of Agreement discussion are taking place. Possibilities of changes are
underway. The towns need to hear how the assessments are formulated. He urged the Board to
come up with other community outreach opportunities. Dick asked that thoughts be called in to
him or emailed.
Mary Allen asked if the only change to the Articles is the ADM. Bart said that the language will be
made current. He cited the example of how each of the schools will be used grade wise.
Dick said that the SAC were clear that they wanted to know who the winners and losers would be.
We will need to compare different formulas.
Bart asked who is going to draft this. Dick said that we would require an additional meeting.



Bart asked if it was that important and added that we don’t have time. We need to start earlier and
get the information out and let the towns digest the information.

Mary Allen said that she wants all of the stakeholders to understand the meaning.

Bart added that the other options are a whole other discussion and he felt that we did not have the
time or the resources to pursue.

Craig said that in one week’s time frame, there were two completely polar articles stating that
enrollment was up and also down. He said that it would be easier to post the ADM from each town
as well as the numbers from each town in each school. He wants to simplify things.

Marian said that January 8" is the public hearing. It does not have to be posted until January 28™.
At the public meeting we could get input.

Bart said that we now have three proposals just from this meeting alone. Gail said that she can
provide a fourth. Bart said that we do not need this distraction right now when there are so many
other issues.

Marian said that we cannot change the formula if it passes for five years.

Gail said that if we go to 100% property and skip ADM, we can avoid all of this. The only thing is
to view the school district as a school district and that the taxpayers pay for the students.

Bart said that we should spend at least one year having this debate.

Gail said now that we have adequacy grants, she is unclear that they are distributed properly. She
said that part of the calculation is the number of special education students. There are some
issues with regard to adequacy grants when talking about a cooperative school district.

Marian said that it is calculated by town.

Craig said that we should conclude that it is too complicated to solve this year. Many agreed.
Stewart Brock said that he will help work on what this will look like as Communication Chair.

Dick said that alternative models of Administration are being considered. The issues are complex
and should not be expected in the 09 year.

Dick said that we are ready to move forward with a new SpEd Program poll. Gail asked for figures.
Linda said that we have to meet specific guidelines. The greatest number that we can have in the
program is 12. We currently identified enough students to fill the program. She said that as a
result, she cannot expect any revenue to come from this program in the next several years. She
cannot accept tuition students at this point. Linda said that the program would be built to follow the
students through elementary, middle and high school.

Dick asked if it would be fair to say that the program had a three year age span. The worry is that
there is no continuum of program.

Bart said that this was presented on Saturday and the Board was told that we were being brought
up to speed. Tonight, without it being an agenda item, we are asked to vote on it. He said that he
has a problem with this. It needs to be an agenda item and the opportunity for discussion needs to
be provided. Bart asked what the impact of our vote tonight would be.

Dick said that it would allow Linda to pursue implementation for next year. He said that as a
parent, he would need information to process this.

Ray Cote said that when we look at how many students will be served by this, we should call our
Congress because of the limitations. He said that whenever we implement these programs we talk
about savings but we never show what the savings are in later years. He said that we need to
track the alternative to justify the action.

Linda Potter said that she could estimate.

Arthur Knight said that he feels that we are asking for two new people on the payroll and this
program exists on a grant. He said that it just gets bigger and bigger. He said that it is special
education which evokes a lot of emotion. He added that we have to look at the whole picture.
Craig said that the problem is that we are required to do this. We are trying to propose an
alternative that saves us more money. He agreed that more detail is needed. He said that we
have spent $50 million in this district complying with these mandates. We need help.



Linda said that we provide an adequate education for all students. We have put together a way to
meet minimum standards in this area. The grant allows staff to stay after school two days a week
for two hours.

Dan Harper said that he thought that Linda’s presentation gave us as much information as we
needed. We are in the education business and he felt that we should move forward with this and
trust our Administration.

Bart said that we were told that we would be able to tuition in to offset costs. We might have an
opportunity to become a service provider. He said that this would be a huge selling point which we
find is no longer available.

Linda Potter said that two additional students have been brought up today, the numbers can
change quickly. When we are able to take tuition students we will.

Dick Bergeron suggested that there was another imperative beside economics. Whenever
conditions exist to provide FAPE for ConVal students, he would ask the Board to consider this
equal with money. He feels this is a driving force. It is a rising population and we do not have a
program for students on the autism spectrum. He asked the Board for their consideration.

Mary Loftis felt too that Linda made a compelling request for the program at the Budget work
session. She felt that she is ready to lend this program support.

Gail asked how the students that were just identified were located. Linda said that through Rise
and Child Find.

Dick said that typically, these students would be identified with communication disorders.

Tom said that this will be brought back to the next Board meeting to get a sense of where the
Board would like to go.

Dick continued on through his list by saying that Marian continues examination of supplies and
equipment. We are not ready to say what the range of savings might be. The figures are still
being compiled.

Dick further spoke about the Technology Needs & Recommendations stated in his handout.

Tom said that the Technology committee will meet on December 20™.

Dick spoke about Professional Development information. Grant funding helps us on the initiatives
listed.

Dick asked the Board to come up with a figure to reflect existing contracts. Tom said that the
current number should be used?

Dick said that he would like information from the Board about what they might like to see placed on
the web.

Members wanted a copy of version | of the contract on the web. Stewart suggested that the most
current version be posted along with the posted date.

Bart said that the existing contract increases should be imbedded in it. Stewart agreed.

Ray asked about technology identification in the budget. Marian said that it might need to be
refined.

Dick said that Public Hearing is scheduled January 8" and the posting date is January 28™.
Warrants were going to take place from 6:00 — 7:00 p.m. and the board meeting to follow.

Marian said that it has already been advertised. We could state the time and then say that

the Board meeting will immediately follow.

Tom said plan on 6:30 on January 8". We will get this information out electronically.

Stewart reminded that we committed to meet in each of our towns. This is a gentle reminder to
schedule “meet and greets” in our perspective towns. We have a lot to talk about. He asked that
members email Stewart with dates. If conflicts arise, meetings could still take place, with follow-up
meetings with the SAU. Report back to the Board with the issues that have come up.



Stewart said that the CVHS Parent Association would like to know if they can post from the ConVal
site. Dick confirmed that they could.

7. Approval of Manifests (Board Vote Required)

Marian certified that manifests 67 through 72 totaling $ 311,894.94 and SubRub 115 and 116
totaling $ 20,056.49 as well as Payroll 12 totaling $ 1,400,507.21 have been reviewed by me and
found to be proper charges against the Contoocook Valley School District for goods and/or
services received and have been properly processed prior to their submittal to the School Board.

Craig Hicks moved to accept the approval of the manifests as read. Beverly Bacon second.
Unanimous.

Tom thanked Beverly Bacon for the gift bags presented to each of the members at the table tonight
with gratitude.

Beverly asked that January meetings be scheduled.
Education Committee will meet on Wednesday, January 23" at 7:00 p.m. at the SAU.
Communications on January 14" at 7:00 p.m. at the SAU.
Budget & Property January 8".
Board Meeting on January 8".
Marian distributed the December expenditure report (See Attachment #2).
Butch asked if information about suspensions and bullying would be made available. Dick said
that it is almost complete and that he has been working on the document so that individual
students cannot be identified.
8. Non-Public Session: RSA 91-A:3,lic

a. Negotiations
Dan Harper moved to enter non-public session in accordance with RSA 91-A:3,lic at 8:34 for
one matter of negotiation. Unanimous on a roll call vote.
Tom made a reminder to Board members that will be running that they should register.

Ray Cote moved to exit and seal the minutes of non-public session at 8:58 p.m. Craig Hicks
second. Unanimous.

Respectfully submitted,

Brenda Marschok



